
 

 
 

ANTELOPE VALLEY COLLEGE 
STRATEGIC PLANNING & BUDGET COUNCIL (SPBC) AGENDA 

April 24, 2013 
2:30 p.m. – SSV 151 

 

To conform to the open meeting act, the public may attend open sessions 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 

2. OPENING COMMENTS FROM THE CO-CHAIRS 
 

3. OPEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
a. March 20, 2013 (attachment) 

 

5. REPORTS 
a. Human Resources Sub-Group – Dr. Vicki Nicholson 
b. Facilities Sub-Group – Mr. Doug Jensen 
c. Communications Sub-Group – Mr. Steve Standerfer 
d. Educational Master Plan – Dr. Karen Cowell 
 

6. ACTION ITEM  
a. Performing Arts Theatre Manager (attachment) 

 

7. DISCUSSION ITEM 
a. SPBC Sub-Group Membership, Mission, Charge, and Purpose Statements (Integrated Planning) 

 Budget and Finance 
 Human Resources 
 Facilities 
 Communications 
 Educational Master Plan 

b. HR Subgroup Recommendation: Process Augmentation for Staffing Requests (2/21/13 Subgroup 
attachment) 

c. Research Analyst Position Update on Recommended Action 
 

8. Informational Items 
a. Hiring Request: Clerical II (50% Foster and Kinship Care Education funded) (attachment) 
 

9. SPBC ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS 

a. Spring SPBC Meetings 
 May 15, 2013  
 

b. Summer SPBC Meetings 
 Summer meeting dates: June 19, 2013 and July 17, 2013 

 

9. OPEN FORUM 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 

NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 
Antelope Valley College prohibits discrimination and harassment based on sex, gender, race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, age, disability, marital status, sexual orientation, cancer-related 
medical condition, or genetic predisposition.  Upon request, we will consider reasonable accommodation to permit individuals with protected disabilities to (1) complete the employment or admission 
process, (b) perform essential job functions, (c) enjoy benefits and privileges of similarly-situated individuals without disabilities, and (d) participate in instruction, programs, services, activities, or 
events.   

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person 
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should direct such request to Ms. Sharon A. Lowry, Vice President of Academic Affairs, at (661) 
722-6304 (weekdays between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 4:30 p.m.) at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible.  Public records related to agenda items for open session are available for public 
inspection 72 hours prior to each regular meeting at the Antelope Valley College Vice President of Academic Affairs Office, Administration Building (A 134), 3041 West Avenue K, Lancaster, 
California 93536. 



 
 

 
STRATEGIC PLANNING & BUDGET COUNCIL (SPBC) 

MEETING MINUTES 
March 20, 2013 

3:00 pm. – SSV 151 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
Ms. Maria Clinton, Faculty Co-Chair, called the meeting to order at 3:09 p.m. 

 
2. OPENING COMMENTS FROM THE CO-CHAIR 

 At the previous meeting there was announcement made regarding Administration looking into 
contracting a consultant, Dr. Matthew Lee, to review committee/council processes. The District has 
agreed to contract the services of Dr. Lee and he will begin reviewing our documents to establish a 
basis of understanding of our processes. He will be meeting with various entities on campus to gain 
further understanding of process issues that are unclear or causing frustration at the committee 
and/or council level. He will be working to identify the gaps in processes and will provide a report 
of his findings with recommendations to address gaps found in the processes.  

 
3. OPEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 None 
 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
a. February 20, 2013 (attachment) 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the February 20, 2013 SPBC meeting minutes. 
Motion carried with one abstention. 

  
5. REPORTS 

a. Human Resources Sub-Group – V. Nicholson 
The subgroup met and discussed revising the approval process for vacant District funded positions. 
These positions are already included in the District budget and have a neutral impact on funding 
therefore should not be made to conform to the instituted process which requires SPBC Budget and 
Finance Subgroup  as well as the main body of SPBC approval prior to initiating the hiring process 
to fill vacant or vacated positions. There is an undue negative impact to the Confidential 
Management, Supervisory, and Classified groups because positions needing to be filled are delayed 
a month or more due to having to go through the process prior to initiating the recruitment process. 
When positions are vacated there is an immediate need to begin the hiring process and not leave 
positions vacant for months prior to hiring a new employee to fill the vacancy. The subgroup 
recommends all existing positions incorporated in the District budget go through a review a 
different process. These hiring requests should be reviewed at the Executive Council level which 
will give Administrators the opportunity to speak to the need and justification to fill positions. 
Council members would engage in discussion and either approve or reject the request. The hiring 
recruitment process would then be initiated and conducted in a timelier manner than the current 
process facilitates. Dr. Nicholson indicated this is common practice at other institutions given the 
hiring request does not have budget implications. 
   

b. Facilities Sub-Group – D. Jensen 
A Facilities Subgroup report was not provided. 
 

c. Communications Sub-Group – S. Standerfer 
A Communication Subgroup report was not provided. 
 
 
 



 
 

d. Educational Master Plan – K. Cowell 
The next Educational Master Plan meeting has been established for April 12, 2013. All academic 
areas and administrative areas should have received data template forms to complete. Dr. Cowell 
indicated it took her approximately three hours total to complete the forms for the Health Sciences 
and Technical Education divisions. The information required is fairly easily accessible and should 
not take an exorbitant amount of time to complete. She strongly suggested areas begin working on 
completing the information as time is of the essence to compile information for the District into a 
report format. 
 

A motion was made and seconded to amend the agenda to include an additional action tem for the request to 
hire a Utility Worker which was inadvertently left off the agenda but included as an agenda item at the Budget 
and Finance Subgroup. Motion carried.  
 

6. ACTION ITEMS 
a. AVC’s Tagline: “Enriching Lives, Building Futures” 

A motion was made and seconded to approve a new AVC tagline, “Enriching Lives, Building 
Futures.” A brief review of background information was presented which as provided by Mr. Steve 
Standerfer. The Communications Subgroup minutes reflected the meeting where discussion 
occurred but only included two out of the four subgroup members recommending the Council 
approve a new tagline for Antelope Valley College. Motion carried with two abstentions. 
 

b. Hiring Request: (2) Financial Aid Technician I positions (replacements – 100% District 
funded) 
The Budget and Finance Subgroup reviewed and approved the recommendation to initiate the 
hiring for (2) Financial Aid Technician I positions. The tally of the subgroup vote could not be 
obtained prior to the completion of minutes. 
A motion was made and seconded to approve the hiring request recommendation for (2) Financial 
Aid Technician I positions. Motion carried. 10 – Yeas; 4 – opposed; 1 – abstentions.   
 

c. Hiring Request: (2) Custodial I positions (replacements – 100% District funded) 
The Budget and Finance Subgroup reviewed and approved the recommendation to initiate the 
hiring for (2) Custodial I positions. The tally of the subgroup vote could not be obtained prior to the 
completion of minutes. 
A motion was made and seconded to approve the hiring request recommendation for (2) Custodian I 
positions. Motion carried. 15 – Yeas; 0 – opposed; 0 – abstentions.   
 

d. Hiring Request: Utility Worker (replacement – 100% District funded) 
The Budget and Finance Subgroup reviewed and approved the recommendation to initiate the 
hiring for a Utility Worker position. The tally of the subgroup vote could not be obtained prior to 
the completion of minutes. 
A motion was made and seconded to approve the hiring request recommendation for a Utility 
Worker. Motion carried. 10 – Yeas; 4 – opposed; 1 – abstentions.   
 

e. Hiring Request: Accounting Assistant II (replacement – 100% funded) 
The Budget and Finance Subgroup reviewed and approved the recommendation to initiate the 
hiring for an Accounting Assistant I position.  
A motion was made and seconded to approve the hiring request recommendation for an Accounting 
Assistant II position. Motion carried. 11 – Yeas; 2 – opposed; 2 – abstentions.   
 

f. Hiring Request: Certificated Faculty (replacements – 100% District funded) (attachment) 
The Budget and Finance Subgroup reviewed and approved the recommendation to initiate the 
hiring for (6) Certificated Faculty positions. The tally of the subgroup vote could not be obtained 
prior to the completion of minutes. 
A motion was made and seconded to approve the hiring request recommendation for (6) Certificated 
Faculty positions. Council members reviewed the supplemental information provided in the agenda 
packet. The District has been notified for six retirements/resignations at the end of the academic 



 
 

year and must make efforts to ensure full-time replacements are acquired. The District has lost 
experienced a reduction in Full-Time Certificated Faculty over the past several years due to 
retirements and have not made any efforts to replace these positions due to the budget situation. It is 
no longer acceptable to continue this practice as several programs do not have Full-Time Faculty to 
manage and coordinate programs. A review of the cost savings was reviewed. The District will 
realize a cost savings of approximately $191K with the approval to hire six faculty positions. The 
calculations were performed on the current salaries of retirees compared to the replacement salaries 
of newly hired faculty at Column 2, Step 6. Ms. Sharon Lowry indicated Dr. Jackie Fisher supports 
beginning to process to establish replacements of Certificated Faculty and has coordinated a 
meeting with the Vice Presidents and the Academic Senate President to discuss and determine 
specific disciplines needing to be hired for the 2013 – 2014 academic year provided Council 
approves the recommendation to hire six Certificated Faculty positions.  Motion carried. 13 – Yeas; 
0 – opposed; 0 – abstentions. 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the hiring request recommendation for an additional 
(4) Certificated Faculty positions if the May Revise budget amount provides positive funding for the 
District. Ms. Lowry stated she is requesting the Council consider approving the recommendation to 
hire an additional four Certificated Faculty positions if the May Revise budget amounts includes 
additional funding for the District. Based on the calculations of salary and benefits the initial annual 
cost to District is estimated to be $175K. Motion carried. 12 – Yeas; 2 – opposed; 0 – abstentions. 
 

7. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
a. SPBC Sub-Group Membership, Mission, Charge, and Purpose Statements (Integrated 

Planning) 
 Budget and Finance 
 Human Resources 
 Facilities 
 Communications 
 Educational Master Plan 
This agenda item was tabled to be discussed at a future meeting. 
 

b. Certificated Staff Request Form (attachment) – Ms. Sharon Lowry 
Ms. Lowry provided a brief overview of the Certificated Staff Position Request form and the 
revisions made to close the integrated planning loop for Accreditation reporting purposes. The form 
is completed by the Deans with their discipline faculty input. The additional fields include: SLOs 
complete and Assessed, PLOs completed and assessed, Position documented as needed in Program 
Review Report, Request forwarded to SPBC Budget and Finance Subgroup, and SPBC. These fields 
have been incorporated to show the full process which a Certificated Staff Request and 
demonstrates the integrated planning process. The current Certificated Staffing process is discipline 
faculty and the Division Dean should engage in discussion regarding Certificated Staffing needs and 
obtain necessary information with statistical data. Division constituents should review and discuss 
needs to establish a prioritization for the Division. Administration coordinates a meeting with the 
Academic Senate President to discuss and determine the specific discipline hires. 

Dr. Ed Beyer inquired if the SLO field is marked “no” would the request then be denied. Ms. Lowry 
responded the request would be denied because all disciplines are required to have completed SLOs 
on file and assess them regularly. In addition, he expressed concern regarding the requirement to 
include FTES totals by area as there are many disciplines that do not have a full-time faculty 
available to work to grow a discipline program.  

Dr. Cowell indicated a small narrative can be provided on the form to speak to an action plan 
initiated to address any area deficiencies. Faculty should be consistently documenting action plans 
in WEAVE to demonstrate assessment processes are active and ongoing.     
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

c. Adult Education – Dr. Jackie Fisher 
This agenda item was included to communicate the Governor’s proposal for community colleges to 
assume the responsibility for Adult Education. There is not a clear understanding on the direction 
the Governor is planning on going and it is not likely any action will take effect this academic year 
but it is very plausible Districts will know more after obtaining May revise budget funding amounts 
are announced. The May Revise budget numbers may include details on how Adult Education 
courses will be funded, either as credit or non-credit. Dr. Fisher proposed discussions on this issue 
are tabled until more information is known. 

Ms. Sherrie Padilla informed Council members community colleges may feel the effects of this 
decision based on new laws taking effect as of January 2012. The law states if a student does not 
have a GED or High School Diploma they will not be eligible to receive financial aid funds to 
attend school. There are a significant number of students receiving financial aid who do not have a 
GED or High School Diploma registered in Basic Skills courses that will be affected.  
 

d. Proposed Procedure for Staffing Requests – Ms. Mazie Brewington 
This agenda item was tabled for discussion at a future meeting since Ms. Brewington could not be 
in attendance to speak to this issue due to another off campus obligation. 
 

e. Expediency of Position requests to replace vacated positions – Ms. Maria Clinton 
In response to the recommendation of the Human Resources Subgroup, Ms. Clinton stated at a 
recent College Coordinating Council the members approved to enter into a contracted agreement 
with Dr. Matthew Lee to identify the gaps in the District’s shared governance processes. The 
Council needs to be cautious in making revisions to the current processes which Dr. Lee has been 
contracted to thoroughly review to identify process gaps. It would not be prudent or reasonable for 
the Council to initiate changes to the current processes given that funds have been secured to allow 
an outside entity to assist us in streamlining current processes. Ms. Clinton indicated the Council 
should delay any efforts to revise current processes until after Dr. Lee has had an opportunity to 
complete his review and provide recommendations.  

Dr. Jill Zimmerman indicated this recommendation should be communicated to Dr. Lee as a 
possible solution for expediting the hiring process for positions already included in the District 
budget so that he is aware the Council is recognizing the need to expedite this part of the budgeting 
process. Ms. Clinton indicated the issue of expediting the hiring process and recommendation will 
be conveyed to Dr. Lee accordingly.  

A brief historical reference on why the process was established was provided. The current process 
was formally established in the 2007 – 2008 academic year when there was a great deal of changes 
occurring in the budget. During this time of budgetary fluctuation it was established that all hiring 
requests regardless of whether the position was new or replacement would be vetted and scrutinized 
by the Budget and Finance subgroup to scrutinize budgetary implications prior to being forwarded 
to the main body of SPBC for approval. The process incorporated justification information to be 
included with the hiring request to taper the discussions occurring at the main SPBC meetings when 
recommending and approving hiring requests. This was a significant issue at the time due to the 
fiscally uncertain time although given the budget has stabilized with the passing of Proposition 30 
and the securing of funds it might be time to reevaluate the current process. 

Ms. Pamela Ford stated that there is a great deal of discussion occurring regarding the stabilization 
of the budget with the passage of Proposition 30 there has not been any campus wide 
communication of increased funding amounts realized by the District creating stability. Has the 
actual funding been acquired by the District? The impact of the passage of Proposition 30 is not 
clearly understood by the campus community and until the funds have been transferred into District 
accounts Council members should refrain from making any revisions to the current process that 
would eliminate the opportunity to engage in meaningful discussion and vet the future budgetary 
implications of hiring regardless of whether the implication to the District budget is neutral or 
negative. 



 
 

Dr. Zimmerman suggested the Council review the Human Resources Subgroup recommendation in 
efforts to move forward in expediting the hiring process for positions that are already included in 
the District budget.  

Ms. Clinton reiterated the necessity to allow Dr. Lee the time needed to conduct a thorough review 
of our processes to identify gaps prior to making any revisions to current practices. Funding has 
been invested in allowing an outside entity the opportunity to review and determine alternate means 
to current processes. This agenda item will be included on the next SPBC agenda as a discussion 
item when Ms. Brewington can participate in the discussion and will include the Human Resources 
Subgroup minutes as part of the packet for review and documentation purposes.  

 
8. SPBC ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS 

a. Spring SPBC Meetings 
 April 17, 2013; and May 15, 2013 

 

b. Summer SPBC Meetings 
 Summer meeting dates: June 19, 2013 and July 17, 2013 

 
9. OPEN FORUM 

 None 
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
A motion was made and seconded to adjourn the meeting at 3:58 p.m.  Motion carried. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT 

Dr. Ed Beyer Jack Halliday Sherrie Padilla LaDonna Trimble 
Maria Clinton Diana Keelen Jenell Paul Dr. Les Uhazy 

Dr. Karen Cowell Dr. Scott Lee Wade Saari Maria Valenzuela 
Pamela Ford Sharon Lowry Rick Shaw Dr. Jill Zimmerman 

Dr. Lee Grishman Dr. Vicki Nicholson Steve Standerfer 

MEMBERS ABSENT GUESTS/EX-OFFICIO 
MEMBERS 

Dr. Liette Bohler Kim Fite 
Michael Reyes – Student 

Rep. 
Dr. Jackie Fisher 

Mazie Brewington Doug Jensen Vacant - Dean, DIERP   

Newton Chelette Bridget Razo Vacant - Student Rep. 
 















 
 
STRATEGIC PLANNING BUDGET COUNCIL – (SPBC) 
 
SPBC-HR Subgroup                              February 21, 2013 

           3:00 – 4:00 PM 

MINUTES     Location:  Admin Bldg, RM A-141 
 

Call to order by:   Dr. Vicki Nicholson  
 
Note taker: Judy Caban 
 
Attendees: Sharon Dalmage, Diana Keelen, Dr. Vicki Nicholson, Jenell Paul, Dr. Les Uhazy,            
                        Maria Valenzuela. 
 
Absent: Mazie Brewington, Pamela Ford, Cynthia Hoover, Dr. Scott Lee, Sherrie Padilla 
 

AGENDA: ►Approve Minutes ►Report from SPBC ►Procedure for Staffing Requests – 
Classified, Administrators & CMS 
______________________________________________________________________________   
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Minutes of January 30, 2013 were approved by all. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

WELCOME 
Dr. Nicholson extended a warm welcome to the subgroup. 

__________________________________________________________________ 
REPORT FROM SPBC 

 Discussion: Members of  SPBC are asked to volunteer for this subgroup. The council did 
not establish a set number of volunteers to serve.  At the SPBC February 20, meeting,  two 
members volunteered to serve. They are Dr. Scott Lee and Sherrie Padilla. 
  
Action Items:       Person responsible: Deadline: 
 None  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

PROCEDURE FOR STAFFING REQUESTS 

Discussion: The current process for filling vacancies is: All positions budgeted or new 
have to be justified in writing by the manager and submitted  to the Finance & Budget 
subcommittee for review. After dialog, a recommendation is made or not made to have the 



position go to SPBC for approval . The issue with this process is that managers have to wait to 
take hiring requests to the Finance & Budget subcommittee, which can be an extensive process.  
For example, it can take up to one month before a position (that has become currently vacant, 
and is in the budget) can be approved by SPBC, therefore slowing down the hring process.  
 
If however, the position is a critical position the Superintendent/President can approve the hiring 
request in advance to expedite the recruitment process.  
 
A concern was raised about the classification/reclassification process. The classification 
committee was asked to review a position for reclassification. The position’s salary was 
approved by SPBC before the classification committee met. The process should be that the 
position is reviewed by the classification committee first, and then  their recommendation 
submitted to the Budget & Finance subcommittee for review then forwarded to SPBC for 
approval.    
 
Recommendation to change the process: Dr. Nicholson suggested that for existing positions 
that become available and are currently budgeted, that those positions not go through the Finance 
& Budget process, but instead those positions should be approved  for recruitment by the 
respective Vice President and/or Executive Council. Any new positions will go through the 
Finance & Budget process. 
 
A motion  to approve the recommendation was made by Dr. Uhazy and seconded by Diana 
Keelen. All in favor. 
 
The procedure for faculty vacancies will remain the same: 

a. Proposals go to the Vice President 
b. Proposals are presented to Deans for debate 
c. Proposals are prioritized 
d. Proposals go to Academic Senate for review 
e. Proposals are submitted to the Superintendent/President for approval 

 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
Action Items:       Person responsible: Deadline: 
Recommendation to SPBC on hiring process   Dr. Nicholson              March 20 
for current positions that become vacant 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

OTHER DISCUSSIONS 
 
Program Review Request 

Dr. Nicholson did not receive the positions that were requested in the program reviews from the 
Vice Presidents. Dr. Nicholson will send a reminder. 
 
Dr. Nicholson will ask Cynthia for the open recruitment list when she returns from vacation. Dr. 
Nicholson distributed a list of all current positions to the subgroup. 
 

 

2. 



 

Palmdale Center 

There should be an internal structure that ties to the Palmdale Center. There are staffing requests 
that overlap in some areas. For instance, Business Services and the Palmdale Center are both 
requesting a cashier position. Financial Aid assistance should be available at Palmdale.  
Palmdale is a mini campus.  The students should not have to go to the main campus for services.  
        

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Action Items:       Person responsible: Deadline: 
Positions from program reviews    Dr. Nicholson  March 20 
Open recruitment list from Cynthia    Dr. Nicholson  March 20 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 

Adjournment 
__________________________________________________________________ 

The meeting was adjourned at 4:00 PM. 

The next meeting is scheduled for: Thursday,  March 14, 2013 
     Time: 3:00 – 4:00 PM 
     Location: Admin Bldg, President’s Conference Rm 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
             3. 
















